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From: Kirstie Knowles

Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 11:35 am

To: ; Meg Rutledge;-
Cc:

Subject: RE: Confidential Orca and AEC

Thanks All,

This request is in addition to the tag application. | would like the committee to review the scenarios table we have
and provide written advice on each scenario.
When could a meeting be held Meg? Same one for reviewing the satellite tag application?

Kirstie Knowles (she/her)

Manager Marine Ecosystems — Kaimatanga Matai Ahu Moana

Aquatic Unit, Biodiversity Group — Kahui Kanorau Koiora

Department of Conservation — Te Papa Atawhai

Focal point for: IUCN-WCPA, Local Gov Coastal-SIG, Sustainable Seas Challenge, NZ Marine Sciences Society
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v = In the office; Q = Working remotely; X = Not at work

Papattanuku Thrives

Te ora o Papatiianuku “ Healthy nature
Te ora o te Hapori ‘ Thriving communities

Te hunga Atawhai People who care

From:
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 9:16 am
To:

Meg Rutledge <merut|edge@doc.govt.nz>;-

Cc: Kirstie Knowles <kknowles@doc.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Confidential Orca and AEC

Morning-

Meg is all over this with- on annual leave. We are aware of the application and Meg is anticipating it to come in
this morning.

Thanks for the heads up,

From:
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 9:12 am

To: Meg Rutledge <merutledge@doc.govt.nz>;
Cc: Kirstie Knowles <kknowles@doc.govt.nz>;

1




Subject: Confidential Orca and AEC
Importance: High

Morning,

Kirsty Knowles has just popped by to check who to liaise with re the orca. There will be an AEC application, but
she wants you to be aware that a scenario paper will likely be sent though today for AEC feedback asap. In my
opinion, the feedback can be received via email given the timeframes.

Meg, | see [} is out of the office till the 23 which is still 2 days away in this fast moving scenario.

Sing out if you need anythng from me,



From: Kirstie Knowles

Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 3:11 pm

To: Elizabeth Heeg

Subject: FW: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper —_
FYI.

Animal ethics committee people on the case. Hadn’t realised they were external.

Kirstie Knowles (she/her)

Manager Marine Ecosystems — Kaimatanga Matai Ahu Moana

Agquatic Unit, Biodiversity Group — Kahui Kanorau Koiora

Department of Conservation — Te Papa Atawhai

Focal point for: IUCN-WCPA, Local Gov Coastal-SIG, Sustainable Seas Challenge, NZ Marine Sciences Society
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From: Kirstie Knowles
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 3:10 pm
To:

Meg Rutledge <merutledge@doc.govt.nz>; _

Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper —_

Thanks-. We really need this now. We are very concerned about the welfare of the orca and would like to
make a decision today if possible.

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
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V = In the office; Q = Working remotely; X = Not at work




Papattianuku Thrives
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Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 3:00 pm

To: Kirstie Knowles <kknowles@doc.govt.nz>; Meg Rutledge <merutledge@doc.govt.nz>;-
>

Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper -_

Hi Meg, Kristie, and

| am happy to help with feedback. Do you have a preferred time for when to send the feedback? | can try to
prioritise today, but may not be able to send this until later tomorrow.

Cheers

From: Kirstie Knowles [mailto:kknowles@doc.govt.nz]
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 12:41 pm

Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper -—
Importance: High

Please use this latest version attached — I'm working on the checked in version.

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
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From: Meg Rutledge <merutledge@doc.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 12:30 pm

To: >;
Cc: Kirstie Knowles <kknowles@doc.govt.nz>

Subject: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper -_

Importance: High

o o anc I

Care of the orca calf is covered under the Animal Welfare Act and Conservation Act and thus does not require an
AEC approval. However, the committee has been asked to provide some collegial/independent advice on some of
the management scenarios faced. An objective perspective on the ethical and welfare implications of the scenarios
would be helpful to the Marine team. The scenarios are difficult as you can imagine and challenge us homo sapiens
to consider animal welfare versus our own emotive reactions to wanting a best-case scenario outcome.

- has indicated that a sub-group of feedback would be a good approach.-, your perspective would be
greatly appreciated. Perhaps each person could provide comments on the table individually and share with Kirstie. |
have copied Kirstie in, she is a manager on the marine science team and supporting lan Angus, the lead manager, to
work through all the management scenarios. | think time to collate a single response may be a bit beyond us all with
various other commitments this week.

This table is confidential, please do not circulate further.

Regards,
Meg (Acting in Deputy Chair capacity in Animal Ethics Committee)

From: Kirstie Knowles <kknowles@doc.govt.nz>

Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 11:50 am

To: Meg Rutledge <merutledge@doc.govt.nz>

Subject: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper - DOC-6724019

CONFIDENTIAL
Welfare column of scenario table on appendix please

Caution - This message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential or subject
to legal privilege. If you are not the intended recipient you are notified that any use, dissemination,
distribution or copying of this message or data is prohibited. If you received this email in error, please
notify us immediately and erase all copies of the message and attachments. We apologise for the
inconvenience. Thank you.
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From: Meg Rutledge

Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 3:34 pm

To: Kirstie Knowles; ; Craig Gillies

Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper —_

Sorry one correction below in red

From: Meg Rutledge
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 3:31 pm

Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper _
Kia ora Kirstie,

| have attached my comments. | have made them based on my qualifications on the Animal Ethics Committee, as
having 10 years of experience working with captive animal management and wildlife rehabilitation with a range of
taxa on three continents including on an international board that set accreditation standards for captive animal
positive animal welfare in Australasia, and as having 5 years experience researching and working with a programme
that included reintroduction of apes to endemic forest habitats (ie repatriation of highly intelligent, social species,
both captive reared, wildlife rehabilitation, and wild born that were recovered from pet trade and released).

In summary, | strongly support euthanasia. | believe the expert advice from international cetacean biologists with
relevant and applicable experience is incontrovertible. In addition, best practice for reintroduction would be based
upon confidence that the released animal has a positive chance at successful re-integration and survival for greater
than 12 months, and ideally to age of ability to reproduce and contribute to species population. Second
international best practice would be confidence that monitoring the animal would be possible to the degree that
intervention was able to be guaranteed before any irreversible damage/suffering occurs.

While it a very difficult decision, it must be made upon the likely welfare of the individual animal, rather than the
emotional distress of the humans who have invested their personal feelings onto the animal. Ethically the decision
should consider that on balance, the evidence suggests the animal will have more eustress than distress, or at least
maintain stable natural stressors. Any animal may experience eustress, stress, and distress in its life. Simply
preventing distress, as is the current situation at best, is not a condition for acceptable animal welfare to continue in
that state. For highly intelligent and social animals the 5 freedoms are a minimum for existence, not for a measure
of quality of life. The ability to keep an animal medically alive is not the same as being able to manage its
environmental, nutritional, behavioural, mental, and physical health.

| am able to expand on this in more detail if required but on quick turnaround these are my contributions, please
excuse grammar and typos.

Noho ora mai,
Meg

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
To: Kirstie Knowles <kknowles@doc.govt.nz>; Meg Rutledge <merut|edge@doc.govt.nz>;_

Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper -_

Hi Meg, Kristie, an

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

Please use this latest version attached — I’'m working on the checked in version.

Kirstie Knowles (she/her)

Manager Marine Ecosystems — Kaimdatanga Matai Ahu Moana

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

Papattanuku Thrives |
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Te ora o te Hapori ‘4 Thriving eommunities

Te hunga Atawhai

People who care

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

o o nc I

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

- has indicated that a sub-group of feedback would be a good approach.- your perspective would be
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

Subject: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper —_

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



Option | Scenario Timing Risks/Concerns Legal Advice Physical Mental Health | Welfare/ethics | Cultural | Public Likelihood of | Comments Meg Rutledge
PRIVILEGED DO NOT SHARE Health Risks Risks risks risks Perception | success*
OUTSIDE DOC risks
1 Release calf | Could o Significant welfare concerns LOW HIGH. HIGH. HIGH HIGH Nil Agree. Not an option in and of itself
(no pod) happen at about releasing an unweaned No further Extreme stress | Calf not yet Option
any time calf as it will almost certainly risks of isolation weaned and should not be
die slowly from starvation. and lack of will almost considered
¢ TAG considered this was not food certainly die except as
an option for slowly from part of
cultural/ethical/animal starvation. scenario 1A
welfare reasons or 1B below
1A | Reunite with | Whenever | e Might take a significant length HIGH. No historical evidence of a case
natal pod natal pod is of time to locate the natal Injury risk Stress of Stress during Relies upon a | where such an activity
located pod sustained handling/ transportation long chain of | demonstrated an outcome that
e May be difficult to transport during transportation. | and possible successes, was in the best interest of the calf.
to the pod, if identified transport. rejection/lack but is Survival for a longer duration of
e Requires post-release While calf may | of food considered time is not in and of itself an
monitoring to confirm Starvation risk | benefit from availability. acceptable animal welfare
whether reunification has if mother has | being with outcome. The quality of life during
been successful. Failure may stopped natal pod, that time, and prevention of
occur for a range of reasons: lactating. rejection significant DIS-stress rather than
oReuniting might fail if would cause stress or eustress is required.
mother is not able to feed significant
the calf upon return. Female stress. Lack of ability to monitor the stress
likely to stop lactating after level of the animal upon release,
30 days, however could be only life/death/location and limited
shorter. Some spontaneous ability to determine if feeding
lactation has been recorded versus slow emaciation.
in 2 different Beluga whales.
Chance of this happening in
wild orca is unknown.
oPhotos of natal pod include
two adult females and not
sure which is the mother.
oPod may not accept calf for
social reasons
oCalf may be in poor health
for reasons not already
diagnosed and reuniting will
not fix this.
1B | Release into | Whenever | e As above, with potentially HIGH HIGH HIGH. Low Likely duration to secure this
a different a pod with lower likelihood that pod will Injury risk Stress of Stress during outside reasonable welfare of
pod with a female accept calf. sustained handling/ transportation holding the calf to determine.
lactating and calf © TAG agreed this was less during transportation. | and likelihood Welfare risks are significant. All of
female present is desirable option transport. of the above apply, AND In
found While calf may | rejection/lack comparable examples with other
Starvation risk | benefit from of food species where this sort of
if lactating being with a availability. reintroduction attempt has been
mother pod, there is a made, it has been made with the
rejected high chance of provisions that human intervention

rejection,

can quickly recover the individual




1C

Release into
a different
pod with no
lactating
female

Whenever
a pod with
afemaleis
found

e As above, with much lower
likelihood that pod will accept
calf.

o TAG did not discuss this
option

which would
cause
significant
stress.

Extreme stress
of isolation
and lack of
food

animal and create a new plan for its
welfare before any failure to
integrate can result in serious
injury, trauma, starvation, or
disease. While some tolerance for
stress or injury may be tolerated, it
is under the scenario of being
monitored that other positive
signals are also present, such as
feeding, partial inclusion at fringe
by some members or protection by
some members, sharing of food,
etc. Prolonged isolation,
aggression, abandonment, or
prevention from accessing food is
able to witnessed and an
intervention prepared. This
provision is not a likely scenario
once the animal is returned to sea

As above, no historical evidence
this is a reasonable outcome to
expect as successful. Taking such
risk with a wild animal, even
assuming that wild animals face
significant stress in their lifetimes,
decisions in the calf’s best interest
while under DOC control should be
made when the preponderance of
evidence of a positive outcome
outweighs the negative. There is no
such evidence for a positive welfare
outcome.

HIGH
Injury risk
sustained
during
transport.

Starvation risk
unless female
spontaneously
lactates.

HIGH
Stress of
handling/

transportation.

While calf may
benefit from
being with a
pod, there is
unknown
chance of a
female
lactating,
which would
cause
significant
stress.

HIGH.

Stress during
transportation
and likelihood
of
rejection/lack
of food
availability.

Low

Welfare risks are significant. All of
the above apply, AND In
comparable examples with other
species where this sort of adoption
attempt has been made, it has
been made with the provisions that
human intervention can quickly
recover the individual animal and
create a new plan for its welfare
before any failure to integrate can
result in serious injury, trauma,
starvation, or disease. While some
tolerance for stress or injury may
be tolerated, it is under the
scenario of being monitored that
other positive signals are also
present, such as feeding, partial
inclusion at fringe by some




Extreme stress

members or protection by some

1D Recapture
2 Extended Status quo, Dependent upon success of
holding time | but veterinary interventions.

questions
about how
long this
can be

maintained.

Likelihood of calf health
issues increases with longer
duration of separation from
mother.

Likelihood of habituation to
humans increases as
interactions continue,
which may inhibit ability to
successfully integrate back
into a wild pod.

There are no care facilities
in NZ appropriate to hold
an orca.

Significant issues with any
attempt to hold the animal

of isolation members, sharing of food, etc.
and lack of Prolonged isolation, aggression,
food abandonment, or prevention from
accessing food is able to witnessed
and an intervention prepared. This
provision is not a likely scenario
once the animal is returned to sea.
HIGH HIGH HIGH. Low A recapture plan should be
Injury risk Additional Stress during established as a minimum BEFORE
sustained stress of transportation any potential release, including any
during further and likelihood potential legal challenges if
recapture. handling/ of recapture then includes captive
transportation. | rejection/lack housing. Likely legal challenges
of food based on international cases of
While calf may | availability. similar examples (female orca calf
benefit from and Loro Parque case)
being with a
pod, there is
unknown
chance of a
female
lactating,
which would
cause
significant
stress.
Extreme
stress of
isolation
and lack of
food
Low, Poor welfare outcome for the
decreasing animal. There is little reason to
over time believe that other than life support

the animal is in a positive
behavioural welfare state in this
scenario and current timeline is
already stretching beyond expert
advice recommendations. Negative
welfare states are being eliminated
by quality veterinary care but this is
not sufficient for positive animal
welfare of a highly social, highly
intelligent creature to be across the
5 welfare domains.




long enough for it to be
weaned and independent
Ethical and Legal risks
around holding a calf in
captivity

2A | Hold calf in Status quo, Current sea pen at Low, Same as above.

existing but Plimmerton is very small. decreasing

Plimmerton questions 3.5m depth at high tide and over time

sea pen about how only 1.5m at low tide.

and/or pool long this Current site cannot be used
can be indefinitely as it is not well-
maintained sheltered and requires

moving the calf between
pen and pool.
2B | Relocate calf | Dependent Iwi may not approve of MODERATE: Low, Extends stress and health risks to
to alternative | upon moving calf out of their Iwi’s strong decreasing end up in similar risks under
sea pen locating a rohe preference is over time Options 1-1D
suitable sea There are no alternative for calf to
pen and purpose-built facilities in remain in their
other New Zealand. rohe, however
logistics Site investigation would be the calf’s
required by experts in orca health and
care in order to determine welfare would
suitability of alternatives take priority.
Significant logistics
associated with moving
calf, plus unknown cost
implications
Potential health/welfare
issues for calf during
moving
Needs clear expectations of
how care, etc. will be
handled at new site.

Transport Dependent Transport of the calf Low International experts have
on scenario requires significant demonstrated ability to achieve
above logistical and veterinary this process but it will create some

support additional distress for the animal.
Clear instructions needed
on what to do in a variety
of circumstances
Welfare and health
concerns for calf as
transport likely to be
distressing
3A | Transportto | Dependent Finding a pod and staying Low

pod on scenario with them will be difficult,

above especially if the health of

the calf must be assessed,
tags applied, and so forth
prior to release.




Requires vessel and other
equipment suitable to carry
the calf

Needs clear protocol on
how to reintroduce the calf
and whether (and how) to
recapture calf if initial
introduction is

unsuccessful.
3B | Transportto | Dependent Potential for increased Low No, as above longer duration of
alternative on scenario health/welfare impacts on captivity decreases quality of life,
holding site above calf if greater distance of eustress, or positive behavioural
transport requires holding elements. Longer duration in
and restraining it for longer isolation with conspecifics is not
recommended.
3C | Transporting | N/A TAG considered this was N/A V.HIGH V. HIGH V. HIGH Nil Agreed.
to another not an option for Option
country cultural/ethical/animal should not be
welfare reasons. considered
Many welfare, legal and
political issues.
Tagging and Dependent Will allow tracking of Medium (it Mandatory for any release.
monitoring on scenario animals remotely and will likely However, this does not guarantee a
above ability to locate the tagged allow the positive outcome once released.
animal on the water to animal to be | Ability to locate animal is not the
assess well-being. re- same as ability to monitor its
Tags are invasive and encountered) | health and social acceptance
require a surgical regularly enough to ensure animal
procedure to bolt them is not suffering. See above
through the dorsal fin. comments on risks to introduction.
Animal ethics approval will
be required, with
appropriate procedures to
ensure the safety of the
tagged animal
A satellite tag appropriate
for this purpose is on its
way to DOC from IFAW in
the US
A secondary VHF tag to
allow fine-scale locating at
sea is still being sought
4A | Tagging calf | Associated Tagging creates some Medium Same as above and earlier
with additional risk to the calf, comments that recapture plans
release of both via the surgical should be mandatory before
calf procedure and via effects release.

of wearing the device.
However, this is offset by
the ability to find the calf
repeatedly to assess
welfare




Would facilitate
confirmation that release
was successful and the
option for recapture if
unsuccessful and calf in
declining health

Clear rules needed for
recapture, likely as
specified in a permit issued
under the MMPA.

An unsuccessful attempt,
particularly with the natal
pod, will almost certainly
require recapture and
euthanasia; protocols for
decision-making should be
specified in advance

4B

Tagging natal
pod member

Only if
natal pod
sighted

Tagging a member of the
natal pod would allow us to
track the pod without
constantly following it in a
vessel and/or keeping a
lookout on land

Would require animal
ethics approval and MMPA
permit to capture an adult
and apply the tag, as this
cannot be done remotely
except with short-duration
suction-cup tags
Significant welfare
concerns associated with
such a capture make this
option impractical.

Also would require an
additional satellite tag, not
currently in NZ

N/A

No permit given for this, and does
not assure welfare of calf.

Training and
weaning

If calf is
held for an
extended
time

Weaning the animal would
increase options for release
Age of calf is uncertain (2-6
months), but weaning is
generally not advised
before 9 months

Open water training could
be needed, i.e. gradually
remove calf from pen as
weaned with aim to reunite
into a pod.

Some training to be able to
recall the calf on command
is already occurring, per

Low

No. This is not an acceptable
outcome for a wild animal aiming
to be repatriated at sea and re-
integrated successfully.

International best practice
standard for reintroductions to the
wild measure success on an animal
surviving and reproducings
successfully, ie contributing to the
species population, not simply
extending temporary duration of
the individual animal. International
best practice also requires ability to




comments from Ingrid
Visser

Any training significantly
increases the likelihood of
this animal becoming a
public nuisance after
release.

Ethics, logistics, media and
public backlash, precedent.
Legal risks

intervene in a timely manner if
welfare is compromised.

N/A (or high;
it will
succeed in

achieving the
aim)

| support this. Decisions on animal
welfare and ethics should not be
made based upon public decision.
Making a decision should be based
upon the calf’s welfare not
human’s emotions.

Euthanasia When Public backlash is likely if all
deemed other options have not
the most been exhausted
appropriate Ongoing discussion about
option for method to be used:
calf welfare o Ballistics are the
only method in the
DOC SOP
o Others are pushing
for chemical
methods
TAG advice is there are
alternatives but that a sub-
group should be convened
to discuss further.
6A | Deteriorating | Based on Health assessment is in
orcaleading | health place but no clear
to decision to | protocols thresholds identified when
euthanise this option should take
place
Method used will require
different personnel and
different handling of
carcass
6B | Stable orca Operational As above.
but decision TAG discussion was that
euthanasia this was an
on ethical operations/animal
grounds health/welfare

consideration

N/A This is a necessary fail safe but best
practice would allow euthanasia
before irreversible suffering has
occurred.

N/A This is preferable, though yes it is a

difficult decision for the human
emotions.




From:

Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 4:36 pm

To: Meg Rutledge; Kirstie Knowles;

Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper -
Attachments: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper - comments in table.docx
Hi Kirstie,

| have been reading through the information provided (I've attached some brief comments into Appendix 1 if you
are interested). | think Meg has summed it all-up very well in her message below — | agree with her assessment. For
my part, if the DOC marine team decide that euthanasia is the best option for this orca calf - | will support that
decision. Obviously, it would be great it the calf could be reunited with the natal pod and then monitored, but | get
the clear impression based on what | could read from the international advice that the chances of this being
successful now are very slim indeed.

Cheers

!rlnmpa !mentist - Threats
Department of Conservation—Te Papa Atawhai
DDI: *

Biodiversity Group—Kahui Kanorau Koiora
Private Bag 3072, Hamilton 3240

Level 4, Monckton Trust Building

73 Rostrevor Street, Hamilton 3204

Conservation leadership for our nature Tdkina te hi, tiakina te hd, o te ao tiroa
www.doc.govt.nz

From: Meg Rutledge <merutledge@doc.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 3:31 p.m.

To: irstie Knowls <nowles@doc govt.nv>; I N

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

In summary, | strongly support euthanasia. | believe the expert advice from cetacean biologists is incontrovertible. In
addition, best practice for reintroduction would be based upon confidence that the released animal has a positive
chance at successful re-integration and survival for greater than 12 months, and ideally to age of ability to reproduce
and contribute to species population. Second international best practice would be confidence that monitoring the
animal would be possible to the degree that intervention was able to be guaranteed before any irreversible
damage/suffering occurs.

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

Meg Rutledge <merut|edge@doc.govt.nz>;_

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

= I
Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri

v Y v v Y

v =In the office; Q = Working remotely; X = Not at work

Papattianuku Thrives

Te ora o Papatianulu “ Healthy nature
Te ora o te Hapori c Thriving communities

Te hunga Atawhai Pecple whocare

From:
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 3:00 pm
To: Kirstie Knowles <kknowles@doc.govt.nz>;

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

7 Y 7 7 &

v = In the office; ‘ = Working remotely; X = Not at work

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

3



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

Subject: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper _

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

APPENDIX | — Scenarios

* Success = orca calf successfully reintegrated into a pod of wild orca and no longer dependent on human care and not seeking out human interactions.

General points (legally privileged)

to stop lactating after
30 days, however
could be shorter.
Some spontaneous
lactation has been
recorded in 2

e Scenario 1C if

calf rejected.

Optio | Scenario Timing Risks/Concerns Legal Advice Physical Mental Welfare/ethic | Cultura | Public Dependencies | Difficulty of Likelihood of - thoughts
n PRIVILEGED DO Health Risks | Health Risks s risks | risks Perceptio implementatio | success*
NOT SHARE n risks n
OUTSIDE DOC
1 Release calf | Could o Significant welfare LOW HIGH. HIGH. HIGH HIGH e See sub- LOW Nil Do not support
(no pod) happen at concerns about No further Extreme Calf not yet options Easiest Option
any time releasing an unweaned risks stress of weaned and scenario should not
calf as it will almost isolation and will almost operationally be
certainly die slowly lack of food certainly die considered
from starvation. slowly from except as
® TAG considered this starvation. part of
was not an option for scenario 1A
cultural/ethical/animal or 1B below
welfare reasons
1A | Reunite Whenever | e Might take a significant HIGH. e Scenario 2 | support this in
with natal natal pod length of time to locate Injury risk Stress of Stress during - e Locating and | Relies upon | principle, but |
pod is located the natal pod sustained handling/ transportation Extended confirming along chain | note that the
e May be difficult to during transportatio | and possible holding the natal pod. | of successes, | expert advice is
transport to the pod, if transport. n. rejection/lack time e Appropriate but is not to hold the
identified of food e Scenario 3 boat to considered animal for longer
e Requires post-release Starvation While calf availability. - transfer calf than a week
monitoring to confirm risk if mother | may benefit Transport to water. maximum.
whether reunification has stopped | from being e Safe and Would need
has been successful. lactating. with natal e Scenario 4 effective clear protocols
Failure may occur for a pod, rejection — Tagging means of about how
range of reasons: would cause and transferring success or failure
oReuniting might fail if significant monitorin | calf to water. would be
mother is not able to stress. g o Staff H&S defined.
feed the calf upon during How long would
return. Female likely operation we wait before

deciding the
animal had not
‘reunified’ and
how would the
calf be
euthanised?




CONFIDENTIAL

which would
cause
significant
stress.

transferring
calf to water.
o Staff H&S
during
operation

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
different Beluga
whales. Chance of this
happening in wild
orca is unknown.
oPhotos of natal pod
include two adult
females and not sure
which is the mother.
oPod may not accept
calf for social reasons
oCalf may be in poor
health for reasons not
already diagnosed and
reuniting will not fix
this.
1B | Release into | Whenever | e As above, with HIGH HIGH HIGH. e Scenario 2 | HIGH. Low Less comfortable
a different a pod with potentially lower Injury risk Stress of Stress during - e Locating and with this, but my
pod with a female likelihood that pod will sustained handling/ transportation Extended confirming a questions are as
lactating and calf accept calf. during transportatio | and likelihood holding lactating for 1A
female presentis | e TAG agreed this was transport. n. of time female in a
found less desirable option rejection/lack e Scenario 3 pod.
Starvation While calf of food - e Appropriate
risk if may benefit availability. Transport boat to
lactating from being e Scenario4 | transfer calf
mother with a pod, —Tagging | to water.
rejected there is a high and e Safe and
chance of monitorin effective
rejection, g means of




CONFIDENTIAL

significant
stress.

Extreme
stress of
isolation and
lack of food

e Scenario 1D if

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
Extreme e Scenario 1D if
stress of calf rejected.
isolation and
lack of food
1C | Release into | Whenever | e As above, with much HIGH HIGH HIGH. e Scenario 2 | HIGH. Low Do not support
a different a pod with lower likelihood that Injury risk Stress of Stress during - e Locating and
pod with no | a femaleis pod will accept calf. sustained handling/ transportation Extended confirming a
lactating found o TAG did not discuss this during transportatio | and likelihood holding pod with a
female option transport. n. of time female.
rejection/lack e Scenario 3 | e Appropriate
Starvation While calf of food - boat to
risk unless may benefit availability. Transport transfer calf
female from being e Scenario4 | to water.
spontaneousl| | with a pod, —Tagging | e Safe and
y lactates. there is and effective
unknown monitorin means of
chance of a g transferring
female calf to water.
lactating, o Staff H&S
which would during
cause operation




CONFIDENTIAL

Optio | Scenario Timing Risks/Concerns
n
1D Recapture ®

Legal Advice Physical Mental Welfare/ethic | Cultura | Public Dependencies | Difficulty of Likelihood of - thoughts
PRIVILEGED DO Health Risks | Health Risks s risks | risks Perceptio implementatio | success*
NOT SHARE n risks n
OUTSIDE DOC
HIGH HIGH HIGH. HIGH Low Makes me think
Injury risk Additional Stress during e Permit to that euthanasia
sustained stress of transportation recapture calf at sea might be
during further and likelihood e Locating calf. very difficult —
recapture. handling/ of e Appropriate failure to reunite
transportatio | rejection/lack boat to etc. might mean
n. of food enable additional long
availability. recapture. term suffering
While calf ¢ Safe and for animal.
may benefit effective
from being means of
with a pod, transferring
there is calf from
unknown water.
chance of a o Staff H&S
female during
lactating, operation

which would
cause
significant
stress.

Extreme
stress of
isolation
and lack
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
2 Extended Status quo, Dependent upon Low, Do not support. |
holding time | but success of veterinary decreasing note that the
questions interventions. over time expert advice is
about how Likelihood of calf not to hold the
long this health issues animal for longer
can be increases with longer than a week
maintained duration of maximum.
separation from
mother.
Likelihood of

habituation to
humans increases as
interactions
continue, which may
inhibit ability to
successfully integrate
back into a wild pod.
There are no care
facilities in NZ
appropriate to hold
an orca.

Significant issues
with any attempt to
hold the animal long
enough for it to be

e Scenario 5
— Training
and
weaning




CONFIDENTIAL

suitability of
alternatives
Significant logistics
associated with
moving calf, plus
unknown cost
implications
Potential
health/welfare issues
for calf during
moving

Needs clear
expectations of how
care, etc. will be
handled at new site.

Transport

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
weaned and
independent
Ethical and Legal risks
around holding a calf
in captivity
2A | Hold calfin | Status quo, Current sea pen at Low, | note that the
existing but Plimmerton is very decreasing expert advice is
Plimmerton | questions small. 3.5m depth at over time not to hold the
sea pen about how high tide and only animal for longer
and/or pool | long this 1.5m at low tide. than a week
can be Current site cannot maximum. | too
maintained be used indefinitely am concerned
as it is not well- about how long
sheltered and could this be
requires moving the maintained.
calf between pen and
pool.
2B | Relocate calf | Dependent Iwi may not approve MODERATE: Low, Do not support
to upon of moving calf out of Iwi’s strong decreasing given the time
alternative locating a their rohe preference is over time the animal has
sea pen suitable There are no for calf to already been
sea pen alternative purpose- remain in held. | note that
and other built facilities in New their rohe, the expert advice
logistics Zealand. however the is not to hold the
Site investigation calf’s health animal for longer
would be required by and welfare than a week
experts in orca care would take maximum.
in order to determine priority. e Scenario 3




CONFIDENTIAL

Optio
n

Scenario

Timing

Risks/Concerns

Transport

Dependent
on
scenario
above

Transport of the calf
requires significant
logistical and
veterinary support
Clear instructions
needed on what to
do in a variety of
circumstances
Welfare and health
concerns for calf as
transport likely to be
distressing

Legal Advice

PRIVILEGED DO

NOT SHARE

OUTSIDE DOC

Physical
Health Risks

Mental
Health Risks

Welfare/ethic
s risks

Cultura
I risks

Public
Perceptio
n risks

Dependencies

Difficulty of

implementatio

Likelihood of
success*

- thoughts

Low

3A

Transport to
pod

Dependent
on
scenario
above

Finding a pod and
staying with them
will be difficult,
especially if the
health of the calf
must be assessed,
tags applied, and so
forth prior to release.
Requires vessel and
other equipment
suitable to carry the
calf

Needs clear protocol
on how to
reintroduce the calf
and whether (and
how) to recapture
calf if initial
introduction is
unsuccessful.

Scenario 4
—Tagging
and

monitorin

g

Low

3B

Transport to
alternative
holding site

Dependent
on
scenario
above

Potential for
increased
health/welfare
impacts on calf if
greater distance of
transport requires
holding and
restraining it for
longer

Low

3C

Transporting

to another
country

N/A

TAG considered this
was not an option for
cultural/ethical/anim
al welfare reasons.

N/A

V.HIGH

V. HIGH

HIGH

Nil
Option
should not

Agree
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Optio | Scenario

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

Many welfare, legal
and political issues.

be
considered

4 Tagging and
monitoring

Dependent
on
scenario
above

Will allow tracking of
animals remotely and
ability to locate the
tagged animal on the
water to assess well-
being.

Tags are invasive and
require a surgical
procedure to bolt
them through the
dorsal fin.

Animal ethics
approval will be
required, with
appropriate
procedures to ensure
the safety of the
tagged animal

A satellite tag
appropriate for this
purpose is on its way
to DOC from IFAW in
the US

A secondary VHF tag
to allow fine-scale
locating at sea is still
being sought

Medium (it
will likely
allow the
animal to be
re-
encountered

)

See my
comments on 1A

4A | Tagging calf

Associated
with
release of
calf

Tagging creates some
additional risk to the
calf, both via the
surgical procedure
and via effects of
wearing the device.
However, this is
offset by the ability
to find the calf
repeatedly to assess
welfare

Would facilitate
confirmation that
release was
successful and the
option for recapture
if unsuccessful and

e Scenario 6

Euthanasi
a

Medium

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

calf in declining
health

Clear rules needed
for recapture, likely
as specified in a
permit issued under
the MMPA.

An unsuccessful
attempt, particularly
with the natal pod,
will almost certainly
require recapture
and euthanasia;
protocols for
decision-making
should be specified in
advance

4B | Tagging
natal pod
member

Only if
natal pod
sighted

Tagging a member of
the natal pod would
allow us to track the
pod without
constantly following
it in a vessel and/or
keeping a lookout on
land

Would require
animal ethics
approval and MMPA
permit to capture an
adult and apply the
tag, as this cannot be
done remotely
except with short-
duration suction-cup
tags

Significant welfare
concerns associated
with such a capture
make this option
impractical.

Also would require
an additional satellite
tag, not currently in
NZ

N/A

Agree — sounds
impractical

5 Training and
weaning

If calf is
held for an

Weaning the animal
would increase
options for release

Low

Given the
assessment that
this would have
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Optio | Scenario Timing Risks/Concerns Legal Advice Physical Mental Welfare/ethic | Cultura | Public Dependencies | Difficulty of Likelihood of -thoughts
n PRIVILEGED DO Health Risks | Health Risks s risks | risks Perceptio implementatio | success*
NOT SHARE n risks n
OUTSIDE DOC
extended Age of calf is a low likelihood
time uncertain (2-6 of success |
months), but would not
weaning is generally support this idea.
not advised before 9 Given the time
months the animal has
Open water training already been
could be needed, i.e. held.
gradually remove calf
from pen as weaned
with aim to reunite
into a pod.
Some training to be
able to recall the calf
on command is
already occurring,
per comments from
Ingrid Visser
Any training
significantly
increases the
likelihood of this
animal becoming a
public nuisance after
release.
Ethics, logistics,
media and public
backlash, precedent.
Legal risks
6 Euthanasia When Public backlash is N/A (or | would suggest
deemed likely if all other high; it will alternatives to
the most options have not succeed in ballistics should
appropriat been exhausted achieving be chased-up
e option Ongoing discussion the aim) ASAP if that is
for calf about method to be not already the
welfare used: case. As
o Ballistics are unpalatable as
the only shooting/ballistic
method in s is, if it is the
the DOC SOP only approved
o Others are method, |
pushing for support DOC
chemical using it.
methods
TAG advice is there
are alternatives but
that a sub-group
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
should be convened
to discuss further.
6A | Deterioratin | Based on e Health assessment is N/A
gorca health in place but no clear
leading to protocols thresholds identified
decision to when this option
euthanise should take place
e Method used will

require different

personnel and

different handling of

carcass

L ]
6B | Stable orca | Operationa | ¢ As above. N/A

but | decision e TAG discussion was
euthanasia that this was an
on ethical operations/animal
grounds health/welfare




From:

Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 5:06 pm

To: Kirstie Knowles; Meg Rutledge;

Cc:

Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper - DOC-6724019
Attachments: Comments on kapiti orca calf best available information pape jJill.docx

Comments attached this time.

eror

P:
E
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 4:44 pm

To: Kirstie Knowles <kknowles@doc.govt.nz>; Meg Rutledge <merut|edge@doc.govt.nz>;_

Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper -_




From: Kirstie Knowles [mailto:kknowles@doc.govt.nz]

Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 3:44 pm

Cc:
Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper -—

Hi all,
I've attached the latest vet report but seemed to be having computer issues accessing the others.-— can you
please forward the team here a copy of all the veterinary reports?

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

v Y v v 7Y

V' = In the office; ‘ = Working remotely; X = Not at work

Papattianuku Thrives

Te ora o Papatiianuku “ Healthy nature
Te ora o te Hapori c Thriving eommunities

Te hunga Atawhai People who care

From: Meg Rutledge <merutledge @doc.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 3:34 pm
To: Kirstie Knowles <kknowles@doc.govt.nz>; _

>
Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper - DOC-6724019



Sorry one correction below in red

From: Meg Rutledge
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 3:31 pm

B

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
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77 ) i g )

v = In the office; Q = Working remotely; X = Not at work

Papattianuku Thrives

Te ora o Papatianuku “ Healthy nature
Te ora o te Hapori c Thriving communities

Te hunga Atawhai People who care

From:
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 3:00 pm
To: Kirstie Knowles <kknowles@doc.govt.nz>; Meg Rutledge <merut|edge@doc.govt.nz>;-

Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper -_

Hi Meg, Kristie, and-

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

Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper - |||
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

| Mon | Tues I Wed I Thurs I Fri |




R v | &

V = In the office; Q = Working remotely; X = Not at work

Papattianuku Thrives

Te ora o Papatianulu “ Healthy nature
Te ora o te Hapori c Thriving communities

Te hunga Atawhai

Pecple whocare

From: Meg Rutledge <merutledge@doc.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 12:30 pm
To:
Cc: Kirstie Knowles <kknowles@doc.govt.nz>
Subject: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper - DOC-6724019
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

Perhaps each person could provide comments on the table individually and share with Kirstie. |
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

Subject: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper -_

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
(no pod) happen at about releasing an unweaned No further Extreme stress | Calf not yet Option . Agree.
any time calf as it will almost certainly risks of isolation weaned and should not be
die slowly from starvation. and lack of will almost considered
© TAG considered this was not food certainly die except as
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
Chance of this happening in | am concerned with the
wild orca is unknown. significant welfare risks associated
oPhotos of natal pod include with moving the calf, then the
two adult females and not additive risks of rejection and
sure which is the mother. starvation. This does not seem to
oPod may not accept calf for set the calf up for success, as it is
social reasons already quite vulnerable and then
oCalf may be in poor health would experiences these significant
for reasons not already stressors. | also find it problematic
diagnosed and reuniting will there would be limited options
not fix this. with monitoring the calf.
Importantly, what would the plan
be if the calf is rejected or cannot
nurse?
1B | Release into | Whenever | e As above, with potentially HIGH HIGH HIGH. Low Likely duration to secure this
a different a pod with lower likelihood that pod will Injury risk Stress of Stress during outside reasonable welfare of
pod with a female accept calf. sustained handling/ transportation holding the calf to determine.
lactating and calf ¢ TAG agreed this was less during transportation. | and likelihood Welfare risks are significant. All of
female present is desirable option transport. of the above apply, AND In
found While calf may | rejection/lack comparable examples with other

benefit from

species where this sort of




Starvation risk
if lactating
mother
rejected

being with a
pod, there is a
high chance of
rejection,
which would
cause
significant
stress.

Extreme stress
of isolation
and lack of
food

of food
availability.

reintroduction attempt has been
made, it has been made with the
provisions that human intervention
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

.- | do not see this as a feasible

option and agree with Meg. | am
concerned with the welfare risks of
releasing the calf to its natal group,
and find that releasing it to an
unknown group would be at risk to
causing greater harmes.

1C

Release into
a different
pod with no
lactating
female

Whenever
a pod with
afemale s
found

e As above, with much lower
likelihood that pod will accept
calf.

¢ TAG did not discuss this
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




1D

Recapture

While calf may | rejection/lack been made with the provisions that
Starvation risk | benefit from of food human intervention can quickly
unless female | being with a availability. recover the individual animal and
spontaneously | pod, there is create a new plan for its welfare
lactates. unknown before any failure to integrate can
chance of a result in serious injury, trauma,
female starvation, or disease. While some
lactating, tolerance for stress or injury may
which would be tolerated, it is under the
cause scenario of being monitored that
significant other positive signals are also
stress. present, such as feeding, partial
inclusion at fringe by some
Extreme stress members or protection by some
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
.— my comments are the same as
above.
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
pod, there is . Would this not place the calf in
unknown the same position we are in now,
chance of a with the added stress of the release
female not working? What is the plan if the
lactating, calf was to be recaptured? Without

which would
cause
significant
stress.

Extreme
stress of
isolation
and lack of
food

adequate facilities and care, then |
do not see this being in the best
interest of the calf.




Extended Status quo, Dependent upon success of Low, Poor welfare outcome for the
holding time | but veterinary interventions. decreasing animal. There is little reason to
questions Likelihood of calf health over time believe that other than life support
about how issues increases with longer the animal is in a positive
long this duration of separation from behavioural welfare state in this
can be mother. scenario and current timeline is
maintained. Likelihood of habituation to already stretching beyond expert
humans increases as advice recommendations. Negative
interactions continue, welfare states are being eliminated
which may inhibit ability to by quality veterinary care but this is
successfully integrate back not sufficient for positive animal
into a wild pod. welfare of a highly social, highly
There are no care facilities intelligent creature to be across the
in NZ appropriate to hold 5 welfare domains.
an orca.
Significant issues with any . The current time the calf has
attempt to hold the animal already been in care is well beyond
long enough for it to be what was the limit international
weaned and independent experts indicated would be
Ethical and Legal risks appropriate. Without an option to
around holding a calf in provide adequate housing, then |
captivity think extending the holding is not
in the best interest of the calf.
2A | Hold calf in Status quo, Current sea pen at Low, Same as above.
existing but Plimmerton is very small. decreasing
Plimmerton questions 3.5m depth at high tide and over time .— Same comment as above.
sea pen about how only 1.5m at low tide.
and/or pool | long this Current site cannot be used
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
pen and purpose-built facilities in remain in their . If a suitable pen can be found,
other New Zealand. rohe, however then this would be better than the
logistics Site investigation would be the calf’s current holding situation. However,
required by experts in orca health and this would need to evaluated for

care in order to determine
suitability of alternatives
Significant logistics
associated with moving
calf, plus unknown cost
implications

Potential health/welfare
issues for calf during
moving

welfare would
take priority.

the impact this would have on the
ability to release the calf to its own
pod, if that would still be an option.
I am concerned with the time this
adds to the calf being held, and
that the negative impacts to
welfare are at risk of increasing.




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
on what to do in a variety .Transport of animals can
of circumstances negatively impact an animal’s
Welfare and health welfare, especially if they are
concerns for calf as already compromised. Moving the
transport likely to be calf, even according to the best of
distressing plans will be stressful.
3A | Transportto | Dependent Finding a pod and staying Low . Same as above. Additionally,
pod on scenario with them will be difficult, the stress to the other pod
above especially if the health of members should be considered as
the calf must be assessed, well, including the impact this may
tags applied, and so forth have on successful release.
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
.— Transport of animals can
negatively impact an animal’s
welfare, especially if they are
already compromised. Moving the
calf, even according to the best of
plans will be stressful.
3C | Transporting | N/A TAG considered this was N/A V.HIGH V. HIGH V. HIGH Nil Agreed.
to another not an option for Option . Agreed.
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




animal on the water to
assess well-being.

Tags are invasive and
require a surgical
procedure to bolt them
through the dorsal fin.
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
encountered)

Ability to locate animal is not the
same as ability to monitor its
health and social acceptance
regularly enough to ensure animal
is not suffering. See above
comments on risks to introduction.

-This should be required for any
release and only if the calf will be
released. This is contingent on AEC
approval.

4A

Tagging calf

Associated
with
release of
calf

Tagging creates some
additional risk to the calf,
both via the surgical
procedure and via effects
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

Same as above and earlier
comments that recapture plans
should be mandatory before
release.

. Agree with Meg’s comment.

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

. | think this places stress on the
pod member that does not justify
its use, and agree with Meg, this




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

provides little to no assurance on
the welfare of the calf.

Trainingand | If calfiis Weaning the animal would Low No. This is not an acceptable

weaning held for an increase options for release outcome for a wild animal aiming
extended Age of calf is uncertain (2-6 to be repatriated at sea and re-
time months), but weaning is integrated successfully.

generally not advised
before 9 months International best practice
Open water training could standard for reintroductions to the
be needed, i.e. gradually wild measure success on an animal
remove calf from pen as surviving and reproducings
weaned with aim to reunite successfully, ie contributing to the
into a pod. species population, not simply
Some training to be able to extending temporary duration of
recall the calf on command the individual animal. International
is already occurring, per best practice also requires ability to
comments from Ingrid intervene in a timely manner if
Visser welfare is compromised.
Any training significantly
increases the likelihood of . Based on the feedback from
this animal becoming a international experts, this does not
public nuisance after appear feasible for the calf, and the
release. risks to welfare harm with not
Ethics, logistics, media and having a suitable facility with
public backlash, precedent. where to do this make this option
Legal risks unfeasible. | am concerned about
the welfare of this calf when
released, including their ability to
socialise with members of its
species, ability to find food, and
risk of being too desensitised to
humans.

Euthanasia When Public backlash is likely if all N/A (or high; | | support this. Decisions on animal
deemed other options have not it will welfare and ethics should not be
the most been exhausted succeed in made based upon public decision.
appropriate Ongoing discussion about achieving the | Making a decision should be based
option for method to be used: aim) upon the calf’s welfare not
calf welfare human’s emotions.




o Ballistics are the
only method in the
DOC SOoP
o Others are pushing
for chemical
methods
TAG advice is there are
alternatives but that a sub-
group should be convened
to discuss further.

.In consideration of the opinion
of international experts, the
extended time the calf has been in
captivity, the inability to locate its
pod, there being no feasible
alternative housing for the calf, and
the likelihood of welfare harms
increasing with longer time spent in
captivity, in my opinion, | think this
is the only humane option at this
point.

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

This is a necessary fail safe but best
practice would allow euthanasia
before irreversible suffering has
occurred.

.— | do not think it is prudent to
allow the calf to deteriorate before
euthanasia. There are so many
factors leading up to the
euthanasia being the most humane
option, that waiting for the calf to
deteriorate is not a humane
endpoint.

N/A

This is preferable, though yes it is a
difficult decision for the human
emotions.

-See answer above. This is
preferred, and the
recommendation to euthanase is
based on numerous conditions.




From:

Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 6:40 pm

To: ; Kirstie Knowles; Meg Rutledge;

Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper —_
Hi Team,

Just having a good read over this — clearly a lot of time and thought has gone into preparing this document and |
greatly appreciate the comments made by Meg and- from an ethics point of view. | fully concur with the
conclusions reached and the advice given from an ethics/welfare point of view with the exception that in my opinion
| believe the likelihood of success with regards to reuniting with the natal pod is also low at this point in time.

Also what to further highlight the comment that the only way release should be considered is if an appropriate tag
has been applied to allow for post release monitoring and there is a clear plan in place as to what the interventions

would be should this individual fail to re-integrate into the pod.

Thanks you so much everyone for your work and thoughts in regards to this incredibly challenging situation.

!elerlnary !!wsor !é!épé - Kaitohutohu Rata Kararahe Kakapo

Department of Conservation - Te Papa Atawhai
Postal address: Department of Conservation, PO Box 743, Invercargill 9840, New Zealand
Physical address: Department of Conservation, Level 7, 33 Don Street, Invercargill 9480, New Zealand

http://kakaporecovery.org.nz/

Kakapo Flecovéry

Programme

Sign up to our free
newsletter here A
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From:
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 5:06 PM
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

To: Kirstie Knowles <kknowles@doc.govt.nz>; Meg Rutledge <merutledge@doc. ovt.nz>;_

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
I've attached the latest vet report but seemed to be having computer issues accessing the others.- —can you
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

v & v v )

Vv = In the office; ‘ = Working remotely; X = Not at work

Papattanuku Thrives

Te ora o Papatiianuku “ Healthy nature
Te ora o te Hapori ‘/ Thriving communities

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
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V' = In the office; a = Working remotely; X = Not at work




Papattanuku Thrives
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Te ora o te Hapori c Thriving communities

Te hunga Atawhai Pecple who care

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
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V' = In the office; Q = Working remotely; X = Not at work
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From: Meg Rutledge <merutledge@doc.govt.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 21 July 2021 12:30 pm
To:
Cc: Kirstie Knowles <kknowles@doc.govt.nz>
Subject: CONFIDENTIAL: Kapiti Orca Calf - Best Available Information Paper _
Importance: High

kia ora

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

“. Perhaps each person could provide comments on the table individually and share with Kirstie. |

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

Sent: Friday, 23 July 2021 12:28 pm

To: Elizabeth Heeg; Kevin OConnor; Sarah Owen; Jack Mace; Reg Kemper; Kirsty Prior
Subject: RE: AEC advice re: orca calf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Apologies forgot to mention that AEC operates confidentiality and the below views should not be shared publicly
nor any individuals and their roles be referenced. This statement has been shared upon request for advice internally
and may be shared with judgment and discretion as required upon this understanding.

From: Meg Rutledge

Sent: Friday, 23 July 2021 9:53 am

To: Elizabeth Heeg <eheeg@doc.govt.nz>; Kevin OConnor <koconnor@doc.govt.nz>; Sarah Owen
<sarahowen@doc.govt.nz>; Jack Mace <jmace@doc.govt.nz>; Reg Kemper <rkemper@doc.govt.nz>; Kirsty Prior
<kprior@doc.govt.nz>

Subject: AEC advice re: orca calf

Importance: High

Kia ora koutou,

This week a subcommittee of the Animal Ethics Committee including the chair, deputy chair, and one external
member (bound by confidentiality and authorised by DOC to comment in AEC capacity under the national standards
to have an-representative on the AEC) reviewed the veterinary reports and the scenarios of outcomes reports
up to and including 22 July 2021. | am sharing our advice on the outcomes for the orca as a member of that sub-
committee.

The three committee members each reviewed the documentation independently, and each reached the same
conclusion that the best ethical and welfare outcome for the calf is euthanasia prior to further deterioration in
health and further increase of risk of harm to its welfare for the following reasons:

e The expert advice from international cetacean biologists with relevant and applicable experience is
incontrovertible: chance of reintroduction is very slim, and ethical duration of holding the calf in captivity is
already beyond recommended reasonable timeline.

e Given that a successful reintroduction has never been achieved globally, and is not standard or routine
practice internationally, and expert advice has clear reasons for advising against an attempt given low
margin of a positive outcome, the committee views any attempts of this nature to be experimenting with
a baby endangered species animal’s life and welfare.

e Such an experiment to reintroduce the animal may be outside routine management covered by the Animal
Welfare Act and Conservation Act and may require Animal Ethics Approval.

e Best practice standards for reintroduction should be based upon confidence that the released animal has a
positive chance at successful social re-integration and survival for greater than 12 months, and ideally to age
of ability to reproduce and contribute to species population.

e All decisions should be based on the interests of the welfare of the animal, not upon the admittedly
powerful and difficult emotional desire of humans to ‘save’ the animal and those who are understandably
invested in the animal’s life.



e The intensity of exposure to human interaction with the animal, and duration of its isolation from the pod,
negatively impact on chances of resuming normal social interactions with the pod.

e Second international best practice would be confidence that monitoring the animal would be possible to the
degree that intervention was able to be guaranteed before any irreversible damage/suffering occurs.

e For highly intelligent and social animals the 5 freedoms are a minimum for existence, not for a measure of
quality of life. The ability to keep an animal medically alive is not the same as being able to manage its
environmental, nutritional, behavioural, mental, and physical health. For a highly social, highly intelligent
animal extended durations in isolation from conspecifics is not ethical.

e The length of time the calf is kept in substandard conditions (water quality, dimensions of the area, and
exposure to inclement weather that interrupts care and requires repeated transport), and indications of
abdominal discomfort, potential skin and eye problems, and exposure to multiple humans and associated
harms of desensitisation; and

e Inability to locate the calf’s pod at this time: lactation of the mother is likely waning or no longer sufficient,
even if accepted into pod.

The committee finds there are few options for a humane outcome for the calf’s current and future state. The calf is
at increased risk of negative welfare while in holding, and at increased risk of not experiencing positive welfare.
Specifically, the ability to socialise with its pod, nurse from its mum, learn to find food, and swim about as she/he
would if in the wild.

Any animal may experience eustress, stress, and distress in its life. Simply preventing distress, as is the current
situation at best, is not a condition for acceptable animal welfare to continue in that state. For highly intelligent and
social animals the 5 freedoms are a minimum for existence, not for a measure of quality of life. The ability to keep
an animal medically alive is not the same as being able to manage its environmental, nutritional, behavioural,
mental, and physical health. We commend the veterinarians for the quality of care they have provided the calf while
these challenging scenarios have been considered. We also commend the DOC team who have invested tremendous
time and energy into evaluating and exploring all options and working continuously throughout this challenging
situation.

Nga mihi,

Meg Rutledge, PhD

Kaiwhakahaere Kanorau Koiora, Whakatl | Biodiversity Threats Director
Te Papa Atawhai | Department of Conservation
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Kia ora Kirsty,

Meg Rutledge

Friday, 23 July 2021 2:24 pm

Kirstie Knowles

Kevin OConnor; Elizabeth Heeg

AEC advice: legal authority to provide advice and approvals regarding Animal Welfare over wild
animals held in facilities even in emergencies

DOC AEC Code of Ethical Conduct Dec 2019 Dec 2024 - DOC-6130638.pdf

High

As per section 99 of the Animal Welfare Act 1999, the key functions and powers of the AEC are :

e “to ensure that the highest welfare and ethical standards are observed by all people associated with the
AEC and the Department of Conservation in relation to the manipulation and use of animals”

e The AEC will provide and advise on matters relating to animals to ensure the highest welfare and ethical
standards are required for the manipulation and use of animals by the Department of Conservation.

e The AEC does not require applications and approvals for routine activities, but does not view this incident
with the orca calf to meet routine standards of management or manipulation.

e Allinformation submitted to AEC is confidential, and Members of the AEC are protected under section 104
of the Animal Welfare Act. The AEC has the authority to suspend, vary the conditions of approvals, or revoke
approvals as a result of concern for animal welfare.

e The AEC stipulates that sick or injured animals may not be manipulated, even if an approval for handling
that animal has been given. Any animals found to be sick or injured may not be manipulated, and veterinary
advice on welfare options should be attained.

e Inrareinstances wild animals may be contained. Should an animal be in a facility, all practices will be in
accordance with best practice and scientific knowledge and the relevant codes of welfare issued unde
section 75 of the Animal Welfare Act. The Code Holder, or delegated authority, shall ensure that systems
and procedure have been put in place to manage any impacts on welfare of animals in facilities, including
those caused by emergency events.

e The AEC has the power to inspect any animal facility where approval has been granted in order to be
satisfied the animals are being cared for appropriately as per AEC approval AND any relevant codes of
welfare issued unde section 75 of the Animal Welfare Act.

e The AEC has the power to inspect animals, their facilities, and related experimental records at any time to
satisfy itself that approved procedures are being properly carried out. In between meetings this power is
vested in the Chairperson and the deputy chairperson on behalf of the AEC.

It is my interpretation that the AEC has the authority to provide advice and approval over the welfare of the orca,
and that the information provided to the committee members is legally confidential.

Nga mihi,
Meg

Meg Rutledge, PhD

Kaiwhakahaere Kanorau Koiora, Whakatl | Biodiversity Threats Director
Te Papa Atawhai | Department of Conservation
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Ministry for Primary Industries
Manatt Ahu Matua

Ref: 12.NAE.05

7 November 2019

AEC Chair .

Department of Conservation
PO Box 10420

The Terrace

WELLINGTON 6143

Deafillll

APPROVAL OF CODE OF ETHICAL CONDUCT

| am pleased to advise that, acting under delegated authority, the Manager Animal Welfare
has approved your code of ethical conduct for a five-year period from 17 December 2019
to 16 December 2024. To avoid confusion with various drafts of your code, | enclose a
copy of your approved code.

For legal reasons, the Gazette notice will not be published until 17 December. | will send
you a copy of the notice in due course.

Yours sincerely

Senior Adviser, Animal Welfare

Agriculture & Investment Services
Animal Health & Welfare

PO Box 2526

Wellington 6140, New Zealand

Telephone: 0800 00 83 33, Facsimile: +64-4-894 0300

www.mpi.govt.nz
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